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          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: If I can start the

          3  meeting, there are two members that absolutely need

          4  to go and I would like to ask them to vote, we have

          5  a quorum. And then I'd like to continue with the

          6  rest of the meeting, if that meets with everyone's

          7  approval.

          8                 Councilman Monserrate was just here.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I'm here.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Oh, sorry. I

         11  thought you were on my left.

         12                 Councilman Monserrate.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you,

         14  Madam Chair. And I'm happy to hear that there was a

         15  lot of negotiations done to get through a point of

         16  resolution, and I vote aye on all.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman Perkins.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes. I first

         20  want to commend the Chair and others for the

         21  negotiations and hard work that they have put into

         22  getting us to a point where I feel comfortable in

         23  voting aye on this legislation. It's not only

         24  important, apparently for those of us in New York

         25  City, but it has national value and I'm glad to be a
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          2  part of something that resonates effectively for,

          3  not only all New Yorkers, but for the nation as

          4  well.

          5                 So, in that respect, thank you very

          6  much for accommodating my schedule, I vote aye.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you. If I can

          8  have everyone's attention, this will be a short

          9  meeting, however, I do need everyone's full

         10  attention for a very important topic.

         11                 First off, I'd like to thank you.

         12  That's why we call him the Majority Whip.

         13                 I would first like to go through the

         14  agenda. I'm going to do the billboard issue last,

         15  just because I have a few comments on that, if I

         16  might.

         17                 LU No. 322 is a UDAAP in Council

         18  Member Boyland and Dilan's district, C050121. It is

         19  to facilitate development of two sites for new

         20  retail development under HPD's anchor program.

         21                 Council Member Quinn's District is a

         22  sidewalk cafe, 20055170TCM. It has been withdrawn.

         23                 20055057 GFY. It is Citywide. It is

         24  the mobile telecommunications franchise authorizing

         25  resolution. The rest are UDAAPs, LU No.349, 350,
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          2  385, 393, 403 and 404.

          3                 Next is Intro. No. 423-A, 20055054

          4  LLY. It is dubbed the billboard enforcement

          5  legislation.

          6                 Just to go over the schedule with

          7  everyone before we continue, just so everybody knows

          8  what's going on.

          9                 Right after this is the Land Use

         10  budget oversight hearings. First on the agenda is

         11  going to be the Landmarks Commission, then on the

         12  agenda is going to be DOITT, and third on the agenda

         13  will be City planning.

         14                 So, I urge all of my colleagues to

         15  stick around, listen to the testimony, especially

         16  with City Planning. I know everybody has things in

         17  their districts they're concerned with, and Amanda

         18  will be here at -- I don't know the time, probably

         19  12 or 1.

         20                 Lastly, we have the billboard

         21  legislation on the agenda.

         22                 This is a very long history. Many of

         23  you have been here for the several hours and days of

         24  hearings that we held on this piece of legislation.

         25                 It has been about three and a half
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          2  years in the making. In the last three and a half

          3  years, I have probably personally met with every

          4  single industry umteenth number of times.

          5                 In fact, not only did I meet with

          6  them when we were talking about the legislation, we

          7  also, the staff and me, were available to actually

          8  try to work out some of the internal issues in the

          9  industry, and I believe if there is anything that

         10  nobody can argue with, that certainly everyone has

         11  had time to be heard on this legislation.

         12                 For the record, there was a voluntary

         13  compliance provision written about four or five

         14  years ago, it was passed in the beginning of 2001.

         15  That was in order to accommodate a lot of the

         16  industry, to make sure that billboards are taken

         17  down. It gave an opportunity for the industry to

         18  join the program. No one did. So, a year later we

         19  started working on getting rid of the voluntary

         20  compliance and giving the Buildings Department some

         21  mechanism, any mechanism, some mechanism in order to

         22  enforce the existing law.

         23                 This piece of legislation today is

         24  simply an enforcement procedure. It is simply to

         25  enforce what is presently the law, we are not
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          2  creating anything new here today, except we're

          3  getting rid of voluntary compliance and making sure

          4  that the present law is complied with.

          5                 Many of you have asked me about the

          6  federal money that we may lose. If we don't have an

          7  enforcement procedure that is valid on the book.

          8                 I received just this morning from the

          9  Buildings Department, because I requested it

         10  yesterday from them, so I want to thank them for

         11  their quick response.

         12                 It's a letter dated November of 2002.

         13  It is from Richard Morris, the Director of the Real

         14  Estate Division of the Department of Transportation

         15  and Albany. It talks about there are concerns that

         16  all of the highways which are required to be

         17  controlled under the beautification act are not

         18  included in the arterial highways, and that the City

         19  zoning and that the advertising signs on those

         20  highways remain uncontrolled.

         21                 As we have indicated in the past, the

         22  federal government can withhold ten percent of the

         23  State's highway funding for noncompliance. That

         24  figure is $800 million. This letter was written in

         25  November of 2002, and it will certainly be
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          2  available, copies will be available to every Council

          3  Member on this Committee.

          4                 I would like to thank especially two

          5  folks, two Council Members, Leroy Comrie, and Eric

          6  Gioia, who really over the last few days have been

          7  extremely strong advocates, to make sure that the

          8  entire industry was heard. There are industry folks

          9  for this, there are industry folks against this, and

         10  obviously compromises need to be made.

         11                 Council Member Comrie and I had long

         12  discussions about the future of billboards and

         13  creating zones on where the billboards can actually

         14  go. In many places in United States of America

         15  billboards are controlled by size, elimination and

         16  zoning. So, I would like to ask Councilman Comrie

         17  and Councilman Gioia to perhaps say a few words on

         18  the future of where this might go.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you,

         20  Madam Chairwoman. I want to thank the staff for

         21  working on this for working on this for such a long

         22  period of time.

         23                 Clearly, there was some inherent

         24  problems with this history with the City, with the

         25  Buildings Department, with people that just didn't
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          2  want to be in compliance that have actually hurt the

          3  entire industry because all of the meetings are

          4  people that were acting way out of compliance, which

          5  has only caused us to come to a difficult situation

          6  to date.

          7                 I still am concerned about the impact

          8  of revenues and taxes earned for the City, but the

          9  ability to look at the zoning issues, because I

         10  think at the end of the day we could have more

         11  density and more billboards and still come under

         12  federal compliance is an issue that we need to

         13  raise, and in a society where we have Internet

         14  advertising and pop-up ads and soon-to-be pop-up ads

         15  on your cell phones, people are used to seeing

         16  advertising in every phase of their life. With the

         17  advent of 2012 and the advent in trying to maintain

         18  tourism, I think it's important that we do look at

         19  trying to enhance our City by doing effective

         20  advertising to every person that comes through our

         21  portal.

         22                 We are, in talking with the Chair and

         23  working with the staff, talking about the issue of

         24  zoning with the billboards, trying to put some more

         25  people into City Planning to give them some
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          2  additional money. There is a commitment from the

          3  Council to put more money into City Planning so that

          4  we could look at the zoning issues, because some of

          5  the areas that we've looked at have actually now

          6  changed in their type of usage where we're not

          7  getting, and I still haven't gotten complaints from

          8  people regarding the billboard, so I think that over

          9  time with effective discussion at City Planning, we

         10  might see some of these billboards that might have

         11  been considered illegal ten years ago in a different

         12  time now legal.

         13                 Also, with the Buildings Department,

         14  that they have to do the regulations, which is

         15  simply an onerous process, and I just want to point

         16  out that on page ten of the Intro, that it says the

         17  local law shall take effect immediately, we did have

         18  some agreement that the local law would take effect

         19  after the Buildings Department promulgated the

         20  regulations.

         21                 Okay, Section 1. But the other

         22  section said, this shall take effect on July 1st,

         23  and prior to such date the Commissioner shall

         24  promulgate the rules, clearly in the development of

         25  the rules by the Buildings Department, there will
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          2  still be plenty of opportunity to look at what's

          3  doable, what's not doable, and to make sure that the

          4  enforcement is done in a fair and equitable way,

          5  especially dealing with reality, as opposed to a

          6  person's, someone else's vision for the City.

          7                 Because we need to have a vision for

          8  the City in this process.

          9                 Again, I want to thank the Chair. I

         10  want to thank all of the people who have spoken to

         11  me about it, and I want to thank the staff for their

         12  work on this and I want to thank all of the members

         13  of the industry that are coming to me that have been

         14  enlightening me on this subject.

         15                 I hope that once we take on this

         16  process we do follow through with the City Planning

         17  which will be here later today to talk about that as

         18  well.

         19                 So, you say 100,000, but we need more

         20  money from City Planning to get this done, I think.

         21  But we have some -- this is not the end of this

         22  discussion. I think we'll have a lot more meetings

         23  on this issue. But at the end of the day, I'd like

         24  to see billboards kept in this City as much as

         25  possible. Only because it brings in revenue.
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          2                 And I'm going on, Madam Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You said more

          4  meetings, Chris wants a week off.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: We'll give

          6  Chris a week off.

          7                 At the end of the day we need to

          8  focus on what generates revenue for this City, and

          9  clearly billboards is an opportunity to maintain

         10  revenue in the City that's losing manufacturing and

         11  other types of jobs.

         12                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And Councilman,

         14  thank you. Councilman Comrie.

         15                 Councilman Gioia has also been

         16  consistent on his concern about the zoning aspects,

         17  and we've had several discussions about that, and if

         18  you'd like to say a few words.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: I'll be

         20  briefer. I said I'll be briefer than Council Member

         21  Comrie.

         22                 Thank you, Madam Chair. Thank you for

         23  your work on this. It's been a long haul, but more

         24  important, I thank you for your leadership on so

         25  many issues that come before your Committee, they're
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          2  all very challenging.

          3                 My concern, and I said it many times

          4  in this room on this issue, is I think we have to

          5  begin with the end in mind. I think we need to look

          6  at our City and say somewhere between Times Square

          7  and no signs how many signs are appropriate, where

          8  are they appropriate, what type of density are the

          9  signs. And just, I guess it was about two weeks ago,

         10  was it two weeks ago or was it last week when we

         11  were here? When was our last hearing on this, last

         12  week? Whenever we were here last, I asked the

         13  questions of the Department of Buildings, and the

         14  Department of Buildings was very frank in saying,

         15  yes, that's not my job, and I can't deal with that.

         16                 And, so, while I wasn't satisfied

         17  with the answer, I appreciated the frankness, and

         18  I'm pleased with the compromise and the commitment,

         19  Madam Chair, that you've gotten from City Planning

         20  to actually look at this and find out where we can

         21  over the next few years proactively decide where it

         22  is appropriate to have higher density of signs.

         23                 I agree with Council Member Comrie

         24  very much, that I think there's an appropriate place

         25  for billboards and signs in this City, not only for
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          2  the direct impact of jobs that puts it up in the

          3  revenue, but for what it means for the type of

          4  economy we want to have, which as we know, we saw

          5  Cultural Affairs sitting in those chairs two days

          6  ago for a tourism economy. When you get off an

          7  airplane and you come from JFK, you come from

          8  LaGuardia, you look up and you see that there's a

          9  great new Broadway show or a wonderful exhibition at

         10  a museum, you're very likely to go to that museum or

         11  that show and spend your dollars and come back. And

         12  I know it's part of the excitement when people get

         13  to a town and all of a sudden they start looking up

         14  and they say, what's here? What's the big show in

         15  town? And that's part of the excitement of New York.

         16                 And I think we do have some work to

         17  do over the coming months to make those decisions

         18  and not to be afraid to make those decisions, and

         19  make them in an appropriate way to say this is the

         20  City that I want to live in and I think this is an

         21  important part of the economic and marketing mix for

         22  our City. So, thank you very much, Madam Chair.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         24                 Anything else from Committee members?

         25                 Council Member Rivera?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you very

          3  much, Madam Chair.

          4                 I just want to also add my name to

          5  the people that have concerns over the piece of

          6  legislation or resolution that we're putting forward

          7  here today.

          8                 My concerns stem from the fact that

          9  how is it going to affect, you know, the revenue for

         10  the City of New York? How is it going to affect

         11  businesses that employ many people? And how is it

         12  going to affect the ambiance of our City?

         13                 And I heard, you know, concerns from

         14  both sides. I understand that obviously we do not

         15  want to be in a position where we lose $800 million

         16  in transportation dollars, especially when we have

         17  roadways that need to be repaired and potholes that

         18  need to be filled.

         19                 But I also heard the concerns from

         20  the business owners that feel that this would be a

         21  detriment to their businesses, and I am glad that we

         22  have been able to come forward with somewhat of a

         23  compromise where we'll look forward to identifying

         24  specific locations that will be able to be rezoned,

         25  possibly, you know, deal with their situations.
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          2                 So, I want to commend Leroy Comrie

          3  for his work, Eric Gioia for his work and Madam

          4  Chair, of course, for your work on this. You've been

          5  talking about this for the past four years, and it's

          6  just amazing how in the past couple of weeks this

          7  has come to such a big explosion. So, I want to

          8  commend you all for your fine work. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Yes, the fact that

         10  it started exploding on Friday is probably a

         11  discussion that I'll be having later with some

         12  folks.

         13                 Go ahead. Anybody else on the

         14  Committee first?

         15                 Councilman Koppell.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Not on this

         17  matter but on other matters before we vote, so I

         18  reserve, and you can call on me after this matter.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman, can I

         20  give you any more hints? Councilman Gallagher, I'm

         21  sorry.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Well, you

         23  did say Committee members.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I know. Go ahead.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Madam
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          2  Chair, thank you.

          3                 Although I am not a member of this

          4  Land Use Committee, certainly over the last 24 hours

          5  I've gotten a tremendous education on this bill, and

          6  I wanted to come by and just say thank you to you,

          7  Madam Chair, for your leadership on this issue, but

          8  special thank you to Council Member Comrie and Gioia

          9  for pushing forward and making sure that the

         10  industry's views are heard here in the Chambers, and

         11  you, too, Madam Chair. But specifically I think it's

         12  important that we pursue and push forward the

         13  placement of funding in City Planning to make sure

         14  that the industry has an ability. And over the last

         15  two days I've had many phone calls within my

         16  Councilmatic district, and many of them express that

         17  it's a vibrant industry, and many families

         18  throughout this City depend upon this industry to

         19  pay for their bills, and I know that I have a few of

         20  them within my district that contacted me.

         21                 So, I think it's in the best interest

         22  to be friendly towards business, to try to work out

         23  some additional compromises and to make sure that

         24  the industry is sitting at the table and has a fair

         25  opportunity to defend themselves.
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          2                 Thank you, Madam Chair, and I look

          3  forward to advocating with you for money to be

          4  placed in the City Planning Commission.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I have a final

          6  comment on this. Anybody else? On this topic? No.

          7                 Before we just end the discussion on

          8  the billboards, I'd like to thank Gail, Chris and

          9  Carol for all their work. Also, Patricia Lancaster

         10  of the Buildings Department, Phyllis and Felicia at

         11  Buildings and David Karnofsky at City Planning.

         12                 But I would like to make a special

         13  thank you, and that really is to the industry.

         14                 I know that the end result some folks

         15  are really happy with and some folks aren't, but the

         16  fact of the matter is, there isn't, I don't believe,

         17  anyone in the industry that can't say that they've

         18  had open discussion with me as the Chair with the

         19  Counsels, with Gail, with Chris, with Carol, and

         20  with really anybody that they wanted to talk to.

         21                 I think in the end it worked out well

         22  in general. I think in the end it's an enforcement

         23  procedure, it's what the City needs, who needs to

         24  get this money from the federal government. It is

         25  outrageous that we have actually spent so many years

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2  at the chance of losing the $800 million on

          3  something that I think is so simplistic that we

          4  should have done three years ago or four years ago.

          5                 But I would like to thank the

          6  industry. They are an important part of this City.

          7  We will certainly work with them as we have, as we

          8  move forward, when it comes to figuring out the

          9  zoning perspectives.

         10                 But I've gotten to know each and

         11  every one of you, I think, during this process, and

         12  at times we've disagreed vehemently, and at times we

         13  have agreed vehemently. But the fact of the matter

         14  is, the working relationship I cherish with each of

         15  you and hope to have that continue.

         16                 On another topic, Councilman Koppell?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes, thank

         18  you.

         19                 I'm referring to the item with

         20  respect to the franchise for installation of

         21  telecommunications equipment, and I was not on the

         22  relevant subcommittee, so I'm not necessarily all

         23  that acquainted.

         24                 Is this a reauthorization, or a new

         25  authorization?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: It's a

          3  reauthorization of a present authorization.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay. And are

          5  there any changes from what was there before?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: No. It was not

          7  amended. Just the expiration.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So the

          9  15-year term, because we've had the discussion of

         10  the term with these franchises.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: The authorizing

         12  resolution is five years.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But it says

         14  something about 15 years.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: When I talk, his

         16  mouth doesn't move.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No, no. I

         18  understand that the resolution for these agreements

         19  in five years, but they can enter into a franchise

         20  for up to 15 years.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: That is

         22  correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right.

         24                 And that's been the case already?

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Because we've

          3  had some discussion over the length of these

          4  franchises in the past.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: There are --

          6  this is the third time since 1990 that the City

          7  Council has granted the Executive Branch authority

          8  to grant such franchises. Each time that authority

          9  to grant franchises has been for five-year periods.

         10  But when granted, yes, it can be a maximum of 15

         11  years.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So that is

         13  not a change?

         14                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: That has not

         15  been changed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.

         17                 Two other questions.

         18                 One, because of recent concerns by

         19  many of us, including the Speaker, I want to be sure

         20  that the money that comes into this goes through the

         21  regular budget process. It's not an outside budget

         22  item. The money we get from the phone companies.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Franchise fees

         24  go directly to the general public.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay, that's
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          2  good.

          3                 The last thing is, there's been

          4  concern expressed, and I'm an agnostic on this, to

          5  tell you the truth, about the dangers of these cell

          6  towers on schools. But I assume that this does

          7  include that kind of deal, right?

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The federal

          9  Telecommunications Act prohibits states and

         10  municipalities from regulating on the basis of

         11  electromagnetic fields, as long as the companies in

         12  question meet the standards established by the FCC.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So, we can't

         14  stop the City --

         15                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: There is a

         16  federal preemption here.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So we could

         18  not say the City can't put cell towers on schools?

         19  We couldn't do that?

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: As long as

         21  they're in compliance with the FCC regulations.

         22                 Well, I mean, the City controls its

         23  own property, so, I mean, the City can make that

         24  decision. But as a matter of law, you can't do a

         25  prohibition on that basis without running afoul of
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          2  the federal statute.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, the

          4  City, I mean, we're part of the City. You said the

          5  City could make that decision, but that's only the

          6  Mayor could make that decision; is that what you're

          7  saying?

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: I don't know

          9  whether there's a representative from DOITT or the

         10  Mayor's Office here that might be able to explain

         11  whether or not schools have been used as --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: There's a lot

         13  of discussion about using them. I don't know whether

         14  they actually are yet.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I just think

         16  from listening, you're talking about the many we see

         17  on the non-public schools.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No, no.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: He seems to

         20  be talking about the public -- non-public schools.

         21  He seems to be talking about public schools because

         22  he says City-owned.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right, I'm

         24  talking about public schools.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: So, you're
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          2  talking about non-public schools.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No, no. I'm

          4  talking about public schools.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: City-owned

          6  schools?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The DOITT

          9  Commissioner is going to be here for the budget

         10  hearing shortly. I think we could direct that

         11  question.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: That would be

         13  great.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I guess what

         15  I would ask, because there are people who are

         16  vehemently opposed to putting these on schools. I'm

         17  not. As I say, I'm uncertain. But if they aren't on

         18  schools yet, before they go on schools, I think we

         19  should have some further studies done, some further

         20  assurances, because many parents are very concerned

         21  about this. And I know that there have been

         22  discussions at the Department of Education about

         23  putting these on schools. To tell you the truth, I'm

         24  not sure where those discussions are, whether

         25  they've done it yet, I don't know. We could find
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          2  out, I'm sure.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Yes, when the DOITT

          4  Commissioner comes these are excellent questions for

          5  him.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Could we hold

          7  off on this?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: No.

          9                 We've had two public hearings on

         10  this, Councilman.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Has that

         12  issue arisen?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: No.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I'm

         15  surprised. It's a major issue for many people.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: But I think it's

         17  worth discussing with the Commissioner, and I think

         18  for future negotiations and future approvals of

         19  authorizing resolutions on this level, it might be a

         20  good thing to bring up. And we can amend it at any

         21  time. It's an authorizing resolution.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, I'll

         23  abstain on that item today, because I think before

         24  we put them on schools we should, at the very least,

         25  do a study. As I said, I'm not in the camp that says
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          2  absolutely no, because I realize this whole electric

          3  magnetic thing is very, I don't know, controversial,

          4  and I don't like to be anti-science, but there is

          5  concern.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

          7  Gentile.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: I would just,

          9  Madam Chair, agree with Councilman Koppell, and

         10  point out that at our last Stated Meeting, we did

         11  pass a resolution asking the Department of Health to

         12  conduct an independent study about the effect of

         13  cell towers on buildings, not necessarily City-owned

         14  buildings, but buildings in the City of New York.

         15  And given some of the concern that many of our

         16  constituents have voiced, I think that we need to

         17  clarify that issue.

         18                 So, I just wanted to underscore

         19  Council Member Koppell's concern.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

         21  much. And, again, if you're here for Commissioner

         22  Menchini, I think that's a great question, as well.

         23  Let him explain that.

         24                 Anybody else?

         25                 I would like to welcome two new
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          2  members of the Land Use Committee, Council Member

          3  Eric Dilan and Council Member Larry Seabrook.

          4                 We welcome you. You got initiation by

          5  Fire today I think, and we hope that you find the

          6  experience here as good as we all do.

          7                 Call the vote, please.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Katz.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye on all.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Nelson.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Aye.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Aye on all.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Avella.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Aye on all,

         16  except I abstain on 423-A.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Baez.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye on all.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Barron.

         20                 (No response.)

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye on all.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dilan.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye on all.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gioia.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Aye on all.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Aye on all,

          5  with the exception of Resolution No. 519, in which I

          6  abstain.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye on all.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Seabrook.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Aye on all.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vann.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye on all.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gentile.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Aye on all,

         15  with the exception of Resolution 519, I abstain.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Palma.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Aye on all.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 16 in the

         19  affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         20  abstentions, all items are adopted, with the

         21  exception of Resolution 519, which is adopted by a

         22  vote of 14 in the affirmative, zero in the negative

         23  and two abstentions, and Intro. 423-A is adopted by

         24  a vote of 15 in the affirmative, zero in the

         25  negative and one abstention.
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          2                 Council members, please sign the

          3  Committee reports.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I want to thank

          5  everyone for their involvement today and also their

          6  support.

          7                 And I think we're going to take a

          8  five-minute break. Gino Menchini is next.

          9                 (Recess taken.)

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Commissioner

         11  Tierney, thank you for joining us once again. As

         12  everyone knows, Robert Tierney is Chair of the

         13  Landmarks Commission, and we welcome him here once

         14  again. As we all know, the Landmarks Commission is

         15  where any landmarks or historical districts pretty

         16  much start in the City of New York and it comes over

         17  to the Council, so we have enjoyed a good working

         18  relationship with Commissioner Tierney, and we look

         19  forward to hearing his testimony today.

         20                 So, the rest of the Committee knows,

         21  Commissioner Tierney is testifying, then DOITT is

         22  testifying after that and then the City Planning

         23  Commission.

         24                 MR. TIERNEY: Good morning, Chairwoman

         25  Katz, and other distinguished members of this
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          2  Committee, that I have come to know and work with, I

          3  think incredibly productively, and I'm glad you

          4  characterized it the way you did because that's

          5  exactly how I feel, even though we, of course, don't

          6  agree on everything. And if we did, there would be

          7  something wrong --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I hadn't noticed

          9  that.

         10                 MR. TIERNEY: -- With you all, if not

         11  me.

         12                 But I'll read through the statement.

         13  You all have it, and then we can, obviously, as you

         14  conduct this hearing, answer any questions that

         15  anybody has on any subject.

         16                 Good morning, Chairwoman Katz and

         17  honorable Council members. I'm Bob Tierney, Chairman

         18  of the Landmarks Preservation Commission. Thanks for

         19  giving me this opportunity to testify before the

         20  Committee.

         21                 The Landmarks Commission is the City

         22  agency responsible for identifying and protecting

         23  the City's historic, historical, architectural and

         24  cultural heritage. The Commission carries out its

         25  mission by designating individual landmarks,
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          2  interior landmarks, scenic landmarks and historic

          3  districts, and by regulating proposed work on

          4  buildings under our jurisdiction.

          5                 To date the Commission has designated

          6  1,118 individual landmarks, 83 historic districts

          7  and 11 district extensions, and a total of

          8  approximately 23,000 buildings that have fallen

          9  under that, all of those categories together.

         10  Roughly two-point, using the number of a million

         11  buildings, a million structures Citywide, it's about

         12  obviously in a range of two percent, 2.3 percent of

         13  the total, of what is in the City, but total

         14  universe, if you will.

         15                 Over the past year, the Commission

         16  has continued to designate buildings throughout the

         17  City in all five boroughs. It's been obviously a

         18  goal of mine from day one, the day I came in here to

         19  talk to you all, and it's something I've been very

         20  mindful of and something that the Mayor and the

         21  Mayor's Office is encouraging me, but it's also a

         22  mutual, it's certainly a direction that I was headed

         23  and want to head, and I think we carried it out to a

         24  pretty fair extent.

         25                 Then I'll just go through some of it.
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          2  In Queens, we have recently designated the

          3  Douglaston Hill Historic District, and a great

          4  cobblestone house at 35-34 Bell Boulevard, that

          5  Councilman Avella knows well and was instrumental in

          6  both of those instances in working with us to make

          7  all of that happen. Incredibly invaluable ali in

          8  both cases.

          9                 Yesterday, in fact Queens was a

         10  featured borough at the Commission. That doesn't

         11  mean it was all sweetness and like. There were

         12  people who agreed and disagreed, and that's what

         13  happens over there.

         14                 We had public hearings on the Sohmer

         15  Piano Factory in Long Island City, Jamaica Savings

         16  Bank, Elmhurst and we calendared the Ralph Bunche

         17  House in Kew Gardens.

         18                 In Brooklyn, we have designated 101

         19  Willoughby Street, and 81 Willoughby Street, 101

         20  being a significant Verizon building in Downtown

         21  Brooklyn, that we were able to work starting out

         22  with Verizon being pretty skeptical, I think is the

         23  way to put it, about what the landmark designation

         24  means and how interested they were in it, given

         25  where they're coming from in general. And as many
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          2  people approached the landmarking process, that way

          3  it's an educational two-way street, it's a process

          4  of education, of understanding, cooperation and I

          5  think that's one of our good ones, particularly good

          6  ones, 101 Willoughby with Verizon, working with Paul

          7  Crotty, Tom Dunn, and others who are sensitive to

          8  the importance of what government does in these

          9  areas, and we're able to talk through or translate,

         10  if you will, to the corporate mentality there to

         11  eventually reach an agreement on a significant

         12  designation, of a significant building in Downtown

         13  Brooklyn.

         14                 We followed that yesterday, actually,

         15  with the designation of Offerman's and Namm's

         16  Department Stores, and, again, on the Fulton Street

         17  Mall area, and now also pursuing designation on the

         18  proposed Crown Heights North District area, which

         19  Councilman Vann knows well. We haven't acted, I'm

         20  sure, fast enough for his purposes, and I'm sure

         21  we'll get into it. But I'm dedicating resources and

         22  people on my staff and to work with that community,

         23  you may have to do this one in segments, but I want

         24  to get started, and perhaps it's been too long, but

         25  we're going to get started in insisting on it. I've
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          2  made it a high priority, and that's where we're

          3  going to be headed in Brooklyn in the very near

          4  future.

          5                 And then in the Bronx, we are working

          6  on, as Councilman Koppell knows, pursuing the

          7  Fieldston Historic District, that's 200, 230 homes

          8  in Riverdale, extremely important area, again, an

          9  area that requires careful study, careful

         10  sensitivity to the needs, to the needs and concerns

         11  of homeowners, as well as the preservation community

         12  and our own statutory obligation to protect and

         13  preserve important landmarks for the City.

         14                 So, Fieldston is on the plate, on the

         15  agenda, and is ongoing, and I thank, again,

         16  Councilman Koppell, for his support, and

         17  understanding, as we go forward, and helpful

         18  criticism.

         19                 Manhattan, we don't forget Manhattan.

         20  Even though we are, my concentration has tried to be

         21  in boroughs other than Manhattan, but there are

         22  continued, believe it or not other parts of

         23  Manhattan that are undesignated. Sometimes doesn't

         24  seem that way, but we have a federal style,

         25  important federal style building at St. Mark's
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          2  Place, and we are looking at the 14th Street

          3  corridor for some cast iron, important cast iron

          4  buildings. The Keuffel & Esser Building down here on

          5  Fulton Street and several interior, I think you all

          6  probably read about this, several -- that's intended

          7  to be an understatement -- several interior spaces

          8  in the Plaza Hotel.

          9                 Finally, we've had a hearing on the

         10  Windemere Building on West 57th Street. If you all,

         11  I don't know how many times you passed that building

         12  in the corner of 57th and the southwest corner of

         13  57th Street and 9th Avenue that looks alternately

         14  like, perhaps a haunted house, a haunted apartment

         15  building, somewhat boarded up, but it's a

         16  significant building, and we are actively reviewed,

         17  we've calendared it, we've had a hearing on it,

         18  we're trying to engage the owner in what we think

         19  would be a productive dialogue and move toward

         20  designating that important building on West 57th

         21  Street, and then people will know finally it will

         22  get restored in the best of all worlds, and people

         23  will know what the Windemere, what that building is

         24  that I passed a hundred times on the corner of 57th

         25  and 9th Avenue.
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          2                 Finally, Staten Island with Michael

          3  McMahon, Councilman, being in the forefront of

          4  support and criticism where warranted and often

          5  warranted and we're moving to, some things he knows,

          6  the DeGroot House on West New Brighton, and several

          7  other individual landmarks.

          8                 He's actually done a survey, a

          9  significant survey starting with a thousand

         10  buildings in Staten Island, a thousand, mostly

         11  homes, some commercial buildings.

         12                 We've narrowed it down. We've been

         13  talking to the Councilman and other representatives

         14  and other Council members from Staten Island as

         15  we've gone through that process. We're ready now to

         16  in effect go more public with it, to have that

         17  inventory displayed and produced in a way that we

         18  can hopefully agree on some targets for designation

         19  in Staten Island.

         20                 So, I guess that's what I'm getting

         21  to in this next paragraph. The first phase of the

         22  survey of potential landmarks, where we researched

         23  and photographed these buildings. I've just said

         24  this already. And this summer we're planning to show

         25  many buildings to our own commissioners and in a
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          2  public outreach effort to try to build support for

          3  the designation of those that are most critically

          4  either in danger, or significant or both. Always

          5  significant, sometimes endangered, and therefore in

          6  need of a more immediate concern and immediate

          7  attention. And that's a frustrating part of this.

          8  Sometimes we lose the race, if you will. Rarely it

          9  comes to this, but occasionally it does, when a

         10  building will fall and either we have not, just

         11  haven't been there fast enough because of our own

         12  reasons or for other things going on in the area of

         13  development in real estate. It's one of the

         14  blessings of great development and a lot of economic

         15  resurgence that the City has seen, I think you all

         16  know it much better than I, that the under-side, or

         17  the other side of this two-edged sword, is often

         18  times a tendency for a demolition for new

         19  construction, whether it's in a residential or

         20  commercial area, and that presents us with special

         21  challenges.

         22                 So, to finish on the designation

         23  front, the Commission continually receives requests

         24  for designation throughout the City, individuals,

         25  community groups, RFEs we call them, and we try to
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          2  get out, I try to go as much as I can myself, but

          3  the staff, there is Ronda Wist here with me,

          4  Executive Director of the Commission, and then

          5  others from the staff right behind me ready to jump

          6  in, and they are out there day and night working for

          7  I believe the betterment of the City in the longrun

          8  and shortrun, the preservation.

          9                 And I've been to Fist Terrace in

         10  Midwood Park, we've been to Crown Heights. We're

         11  going again. And Mount Morris Park most recently

         12  discussing our regulatory procedures with

         13  homeowners. And also most recently with in Jackson

         14  Heights, too, with Helen Sears. Councilwoman Sears

         15  hosted us out there for a community meeting of a

         16  couple hundred people to talk about some of their

         17  particular issues as well.

         18                 So, it's an outreach, it's education,

         19  it's dialogue. Sometimes we're regulating the wrong

         20  way. I'll be the first to admit it. I think maybe

         21  not as fast as I should, and then we can make

         22  adjustments and try to do something because the most

         23  sensible regulation is one that works.

         24                 So, that's what we're trying to do.

         25                 Let me just jump to the Preservation
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          2  Department, with Sarah Carol sitting back here, who

          3  has just become the Director of Preservation. We had

          4  a legend in this City named Brian Hogg, who was

          5  Chair of that Department for 16, 17 years, has now

          6  gone onto the University of Virginia, and he is

          7  taking care of the legacy of Thomas Jefferson at

          8  that campus in the Rotunda, which is I think

          9  probably the only other challenge short of New York

         10  City that Brian -- that's up to Brian. And, so,

         11  Sarah has succeeded him, and has stepped right into

         12  that slot, and it's critically important, as you all

         13  know. The volume of work that goes through

         14  preservation is enormous.

         15                 First eight months of this year,

         16  5,500 odd applications for work; 5,600 actions.

         17  There's a little bit of a lag. Some of it spills

         18  over into fiscal year, so we got little fewer, a few

         19  more actions than applications, and the Commission,

         20  again, getting into this outreach to the landmark

         21  properties to let them know what their rights and

         22  responsibilities are, and the importance of working

         23  with the Commission to obtain the necessary

         24  approvals before proceeding with work on their

         25  building. And different kinds, here's the Jackson
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          2  Heights meeting I was talking to earlier. I'm always

          3  reminded of the two different kinds of outreach, one

          4  is designation when we go into a neighborhood and

          5  say we're thinking of making this a historic

          6  district, what do you think, and here is what it

          7  entails. And then going into already existing

          8  districts like Jackson Heights, Hamilton Heights, or

          9  Prospect Lefferts Gardens in Brooklyn where we can

         10  all over the last six months. That would be areas

         11  already designated, and we're saying what are your

         12  problems, how are we regulating, what can we do

         13  better, et cetera.

         14                 Finally, Community Boards 2, 3 and 12

         15  in Manhattan, Community Board 8 in the Bronx,

         16  Community Board 3 in Queens, just to mention some

         17  representatively that we have been working with,

         18  going out to their meetings, trying to talk both

         19  with them, their Landmarks Committee, to people that

         20  live in those communities, most importantly. And at

         21  that time, and everywhere else we go, we encourage

         22  public participation in our own public hearings,

         23  making it as transparent as possible, make every

         24  effort to inform the communities of the projects

         25  that are going on in their neighborhoods.
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          2                 That seguays me into the website,

          3  which is getting better and better. It's becoming a

          4  communications tool that's critically important as

          5  obviously other City agencies, and as this Council

          6  is doing. We've recently redesigned the site, it

          7  will be launched next month. It's much more

          8  accessible and the public will gain access to our

          9  own permit tracking process. Press the button,

         10  you'll be able to know who has applied for what

         11  permit where, and where it is in terms of our own

         12  approval.

         13                 So, it's a good management monitoring

         14  technique as well.

         15                 Users, also in terms of the front end

         16  of that process, users are able to download the

         17  Commission's rules, public hearing and public

         18  meeting agendas, application forms, instructions for

         19  filing, and get all the information you need in

         20  order to obtain a permit.

         21                 We haven't yet been able to make it

         22  filing on line. Maybe we will some day. I'm hopeful.

         23  We're certainly exploring that.

         24                 I'm not sure other governmental

         25  agencies do, there may be legal requirements that
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          2  require paper, and a lot of what is required to be

          3  submitted apparently can only be done in paper at

          4  this point.

          5                 So, but we're easing some of the

          6  parts of that process to make it, to make it more

          7  accessible.

          8                 Finally, enforcement. We have

          9  investigated 650 complaints in the first six months

         10  of this year, 394 warning letters, 140 -- 174

         11  notices of violation, and 17 stop work orders. And

         12  two-thirds of the warning letters, and this is an

         13  agency where we try to do our enforcement through

         14  cooperation, try to get the violations cured, not to

         15  pummel people with fines or threats, but try to

         16  bring people in to come to us in a way that what's

         17  the violation for, how do we work together to fix

         18  it, so the house, so the windows are repaired, the

         19  roof is done the right way or whatever the case may

         20  be, and that's what our goal is. And two-thirds of

         21  the warning letter actually do result in owners

         22  applying expeditiously to the Commission to address

         23  the violations. So, that's encouraging.

         24                 Finally, Tony Avella, who I had

         25  mentioned before, Councilman's leadership, we
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          2  adopted -- this is also in the enforcement area in

          3  terms of protecting the inventory of designated

          4  properties, the Council, and many members of this

          5  Committee as well, but under the leadership of

          6  Councilman Avella, the Council adopted 403-B, Intro.

          7  403-B, in early February. The Mayor signed it on

          8  February 15th, with our enthusiastic endorsement,

          9  and Mark Silverman, our Counsel, is here, also here

         10  with me, with Councilman Avella and his staff, to

         11  really come up with a great bill. Though it was a --

         12  it was a term I learned in Albany, it was a heavy

         13  lift, because there was a lot of -- there was some

         14  organized opposition of a significant nature, but we

         15  got through it and the bill became law.

         16                 It's an important bill allowing us to

         17  levy fines against neglectful owners of landmarked

         18  properties, and it greatly enhances our enforcement

         19  capability, particularly in egregious cases, or

         20  cases that are about to become egregious, maybe can

         21  head them off through this.

         22                 We're now in an expedited rule-making

         23  process with the ECB to get their rules in place

         24  fast so we can start using this statute, and it's a

         25  very effective tool. And I again thank Councilman
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          2  Avella for his leadership on that.

          3                 And before we had that law, we had to

          4  basically, the only thing we had at our disposal for

          5  those egregious cases was actually going into court

          6  and getting a court order for failure to maintain.

          7  In some cases that entailed a full trial or

          8  extensive hearing. It was very cumbersome, very

          9  expensive, but in terrible cases we did it, and

         10  sometimes very successfully. The Skidmore House on

         11  East 11th Street, we brought an action for failure

         12  to maintain the building in violation of the

         13  Landmarks Law. And the Court ruled that the owners

         14  had failed to maintain the building and ordered them

         15  to repair and restore the building. The first time

         16  that the Court had so ordered.

         17                 It doesn't mean we don't need -- we

         18  do need the Avella Bill, because this Skidmore type

         19  of case would only be a terrible last resort, and I

         20  think we'll have fewer Skidmore's because of what's

         21  been done here in the demolition by neglect.

         22                 Finally, Fiscal 2006 budget is

         23  approximately $3.55 million and $2.99 million in

         24  City funds, and 557 in community development funds.

         25                 As many of you recall, last July the
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          2  Commission adopted a fee schedule for work on

          3  landmarked buildings for work that also required a

          4  permit from the Department of Buildings. Just to

          5  give you a very general update on that, so far this

          6  fiscal year we have approximately, the City has

          7  collected approximately $600,000 in revenue from the

          8  landmarked fees. So, we're really substantially on

          9  target to achieve what was expected. The original

         10  expectation I believe was 1,050,000 dollars

         11  annually. The 600 represents approximately 60

         12  percent of the year. So, we're on track. Nobody

         13  likes to pay fees, we obviously discussed this

         14  extensively before we went, but we believe it's

         15  administered appropriately and fairly, and knock on

         16  glass or wood, we've had one or two complaints about

         17  it since it's been implemented.

         18                 That concludes the prepared

         19  statement. And I probably went on a little too long,

         20  for which I apologize, and I'm willing to answer

         21  your questions.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you,

         23  Commissioner. Never apologize.

         24                 I just have actually one question for

         25  you, which is your headcount. Actually probably two.
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          2  Your headcount. The headcount for 2006 is 50.

          3                 MR. TIERNEY: That's correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: But the actual

          5  headcount of the Commission has truly been 38. It

          6  seems that you haven't, according to our numbers,

          7  unless we're wrong, been replacing folks.

          8                 So, I guess we were just wondering

          9  where those 12 came from.

         10                 MR. TIERNEY: Okay, Rhonda Wist,

         11  Executive Director --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And correct us if

         13  we're wrong.

         14                 MR. TIERNEY: -- Can speak to that.

         15                 MS. WIST: As long as I've been at the

         16  agency, the headcount has always been around 50. So,

         17  I'm wondering -- you know, some people may work not

         18  full time, they may work 28 hours a week, so perhaps

         19  it doesn't show up on your books. I don't know what

         20  numbers these are.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So, it's 38

         22  full-time, 12 part-time?

         23                 MS. WIST: Possibly. We've always had

         24  about 50 --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Who knows?
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          2                 MS. WIST: I would like to see with

          3  the 38 -- I don't think that sounds right. I'd like

          4  to see the actual numbers, because it really is

          5  about 50 people.

          6                 MR. TIERNEY: And when I saw the

          7  number on my briefing, I said, okay, I want to go

          8  over every body --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Right.

         10                 MR. TIERNEY: And I know everyone.

         11  That's what's great about the agency, it's small

         12  enough to have complete --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: My understanding --

         14                 MR. TIERNEY: And I went over, I

         15  counted 50 people.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: My understanding,

         17  though, from the budget and from the proposed budget

         18  is that you're allocated for 50 full-time for 2006.

         19  So, are you planning on correcting the part-time to

         20  full-time?

         21                 MS. WIST: We don't have 12

         22  part-timers. So, I really would need to look at

         23  these numbers.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Is there someone on

         25  your staff there that knows the actual numbers?
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          2                 It's not a huge agency. I mean, it

          3  would seem that you -- someone would know how many

          4  employees there is.

          5                 MR. TIERNEY: I know all 50 people in

          6  the agency. We have 50 employees in the agency.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.

          8                 MR. TIERNEY: And they are there

          9  working. Some of them work a four, Monday through

         10  Thursday. So that would account for that

         11  discrepancy.

         12                 I don't think we're under, I don't

         13  think we're not spending money that's been

         14  appropriated for our personal service.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I mean, look, our

         16  point is clear that we like the work that you do,

         17  too, and want to make sure that you actually have

         18  the funding --

         19                 MR. TIERNEY:-- Sure.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: -- Necessary.

         21  Sometimes our job, which is sort of a strange

         22  phenomenon of this process, is fighting for the

         23  Mayor's agencies to have more money.

         24                 MR. TIERNEY: Right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: -- Which sometimes
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          2  seems a little odd.

          3                 So, what we were trying to figure out

          4  is if you indeed do have the 50, if you indeed are

          5  going to fill the slots for 50 full-time for 2005,

          6  so I guess with the addition, of course, of

          7  Councilman Avella's legislation, and some of the

          8  other issues that you have, we were just curious as

          9  to how you were going to fill that.

         10                 MR. TIERNEY: We will fill it. I'll

         11  spend every penny that you appropriate without

         12  question.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Any other?

         14                 Council Member McMahon?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Yes.

         16                 You don't want to defer age before

         17  beauty?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman McMahon.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  Well, at the

         20  Landmarks Preservation Commission hearing, I think

         21  age is more important.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman, dig

         23  your way out.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: It's been a

         25  long morning.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Dig way out. You

          3  want a shovel.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

          5  Commissioner.

          6                 As you know, we in Staten Island are

          7  very appreciative for you focusing efforts in the

          8  borough and I think as you said in the beginning,

          9  and I'm glad with a smile, that we agree most of the

         10  time, not all the time, but then we agree to move on

         11  and work towards a common goal, and we appreciate

         12  that and your staff does a great job.

         13                 And I did have to step out for a

         14  minute, and I know you were asked about the

         15  discrepancy in headcount, because we saw that there

         16  should be funding for 50 personnel, and there's I

         17  think 38 on the rolls right now, and I heard you say

         18  to the Chairwoman now, you'll be looking to fill

         19  those slots.

         20                 MR. TIERNEY: Totally. Absolutely.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And we urge

         22  you to do that as soon as possible, because (a) you

         23  need the personnel --

         24                 MR. TIERNEY: Exactly.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And (b) we'd
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          2  hate to see the money get lost.

          3                 But what I -- that kind of seguays

          4  into a few questions about the demolition delayed

          5  bill.

          6                 MR. TIERNEY: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Which we had

          8  a hearing on Intro. 317, and Ms. Jackier was here

          9  testifying, and I think very nicely lauded the goals

         10  of that legislation, and we appreciate that, but

         11  presented it as a difficult thing to do because of

         12  staff power.

         13                 MR. TIERNEY: Correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And the

         15  increased workload.

         16                 But we never quite heard how many

         17  staff members would be needed to accomplish the

         18  purposes of the bill, and I'm a little, you know,

         19  just a little surprised to find out this morning

         20  that there is that unhired --

         21                 MR. TIERNEY: I'm told that it's not

         22  the case.

         23                 MS. WIST: Yes, I'm sorry to

         24  interrupt.

         25                 We really do have 50 people. We have
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          2  50 people who get paychecks every week. There are

          3  about three people who are part-time, who will

          4  remain part-time. They teach and so on and so forth,

          5  so they're not, you know, they're going to remain on

          6  part-time lines, but we really do have 50 people,

          7  and probably about 47 or 48 are full-time.

          8                 So, I am sorry about this number, and

          9  we're going to look into it. It may be an old

         10  number, I'm not quite sure.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: If you would.

         12                 MR. TIERNEY: We will.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Because it

         14  actually came to me this morning from two different

         15  sources. One from outside, and one from inside the

         16  Council, and the number was both 38 or 39. So, if

         17  you could get back --

         18                 MR. TIERNEY: Sure. We will.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And maybe

         20  respond to the Chairwoman --

         21                 MR. TIERNEY: Absolutely.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:-- To explain

         23  that headcount.

         24                 And then just to the issue 317 and

         25  the demolition delay.
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          2                 MR. TIERNEY: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Again, we're

          4  always playing catch-up.

          5                 MR. TIERNEY: I know.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: This would be

          7  a way not for us to play catch-up.

          8                 MR. TIERNEY: Absolutely.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: We're willing

         10  to work with you to tweak it in any way we can.

         11                 MR. TIERNEY: We're trying to do that,

         12  and we haven't quantified the number of people,

         13  person hours it would take to do what that bill

         14  intends, which is to flag every, basically flag

         15  every demolition permit, proposed demolition permit

         16  for every building in the City and it required

         17  reviewed, to put it in gross terms, by the Landmarks

         18  Commission, before those permits went forward.

         19                 It's in a range of a couple thousand

         20  permits I believe a year. And that would necessitate

         21  a significant amount of review on our part and also

         22  by the Buildings Department. But not only is it a

         23  laudable aim, it's an incredibly important purpose,

         24  and we're trying to find our way with not only

         25  meeting with your staff, but also with interested
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          2  advocates who have been helpful, from some people in

          3  this room, Historic Districts Council. We've had, I

          4  think, a productive meeting with them to try to

          5  explore some of the ways in which it maybe doesn't

          6  have to be as costly, if you will, in order to

          7  produce the goals that you're trying to produce. So,

          8  we're on the case, but I don't have an answer, a

          9  solution for you at this moment.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay. And I

         11  don't feel I need to preach to the choir, but just

         12  I'd feel I have to say for the record that you know

         13  that every day we don't have a bill like that in

         14  place, we run the risk of getting into another

         15  Errington School House (phonetic) --

         16                 MR. TIERNEY: Correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Or something

         18  like that, where we wanted to save something, we

         19  just started so late --

         20                 MR. TIERNEY: Yeah.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: -- And it got

         22  away from us.

         23                 So, we just urge you to look at that

         24  as quickly as possible.

         25                 MR. TIERNEY: We will.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And

          3  understand that I am certainly open to accepting,

          4  you know, suggestions from you as to how we can

          5  achieve the goal by narrowing the universe but still

          6  not missing something valuable. And I think there

          7  are ways to do it --

          8                 MR. TIERNEY: Sure.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: -- And we've

         10  heard some at the hearings. So, again, just urge you

         11  to look at that and, again, to thank you.

         12                 MR. TIERNEY: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And just on

         14  the Staten Island survey, when do you think we'll be

         15  able to see some of the results of that?

         16                 MR. TIERNEY: Definitely in the

         17  summer.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay. Thank

         19  you.

         20                 Thank you, Madam Chairwoman.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman Koppell.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes, thank

         23  you.

         24                 I do appreciate your cooperation and

         25  responsiveness on issues in Riverdale, and I look
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          2  forward to reviewing Fieldston with you when you're

          3  ready.

          4                 As you know, I had, and continue to

          5  have some concerns about the fees. And I was

          6  wondering whether you could provide me and the

          7  Committee with a schedule of the distribution of the

          8  fees.

          9                 I was particularly concerned about

         10  the large fees, and so I'd like to see --

         11                 MR. TIERNEY: I can definitely provide

         12  you with that. I don't know if I have it in my

         13  possession at this moment, but we have broken it, I

         14  believe it is broken down and I know I have a month

         15  by month, but that's a gross figure. But I know what

         16  you're saying, project-by-project.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right.

         18  Project-by-project.

         19                 MR. TIERNEY: And that would be

         20  hundreds -- but we can categorize it for you and I'd

         21  be glad to.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: You know,

         23  there are so many that the fee is $100 --

         24                 MR. TIERNEY: Exactly.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Which
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          2  wouldn't disturb me. And then so many where the fee

          3  is a thousand dollars.

          4                 MR. TIERNEY: Sure.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Which begins

          6  to get worrisome.

          7                 You say you've gotten only a few

          8  complaints about the fees?

          9                 MR. TIERNEY: Yes, I'm not here

         10  looking for complaints, but we had two.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Stick around for

         12  the future, the people testifying next.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, I mean,

         14  it's important to know --

         15                 MR. TIERNEY: I'm not sugar-coating

         16  that and therefore saying everybody is happy. That's

         17  the last thing in the world I am saying.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But you

         19  haven't had a chorus of concerns?

         20                 MR. TIERNEY: No.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay. Well, I

         22  guess that's good.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman Vann.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Thank you, Madam
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          2  Chair.

          3                 Commissioner, you mentioned in your

          4  testimony, made reference to Crown Heights, and you

          5  indicated that it hadn't been going as quickly as we

          6  would like, but you were going to start doing it in

          7  phases.

          8                 MR. TIERNEY: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: I'm just

         10  wondering, I'm catching a little bit of heat from my

         11  community, justifiably, it's been awhile.

         12                 MR. TIERNEY: Sure.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: I wonder if you

         14  can tell me what phases, how many phases are there,

         15  and what are those phases and when will we start the

         16  first one?

         17                 MR. TIERNEY: Why don't you speak to

         18  that.

         19                 MS. WIST: Council member, yes, we've

         20  applied for a grant to very highly qualified

         21  professionals to do a survey of approximately, and

         22  this is very approximate, approximately 1,800

         23  buildings to determine which phase we should start

         24  with, which cluster of buildings. We'd like to

         25  design a phase system that you and the community are
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          2  in agreement with so that we can start to designate,

          3  you know, several blocks at a time, to get the

          4  community, so we could do more designations quicker,

          5  rather than waiting to do the whole 18 or 1,400

          6  buildings, whatever the number turns out to be.

          7                 So, we have applied for a grant. We

          8  were hoping to frankly have it already. If we don't

          9  have it, we're going to go to another source, and

         10  we're going to hire these two people. We would like

         11  them to do this preliminary survey this spring, and

         12  then we'll have the preliminary results.

         13                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yes. And I believe on

         14  April 16th we're coming out at your invitation to

         15  speak to the community and maybe, it's a little

         16  danger in going block by block, because then some

         17  blocks wonder why they're not covered, and we're

         18  frankly not at that position where we could actually

         19  say that, but it would be along those lines. And I

         20  want to really get started, because I think there's

         21  been obviously much too much delay, and I think

         22  we've done this in other historic districts, NoHo,

         23  Tribecca and Manhattan where there is a certain

         24  segmentation of the designation and that's what I

         25  want to do here.
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          2                 So, it would start promptly.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Yeah, just the

          4  last thing. Has anything actually occurred since we

          5  last met around this? Is anything related to this?

          6  Is everything based on getting this grant?

          7                 MS. WIST: We have boundaries now,

          8  because there have been several surveys that were

          9  done in the eighties, and we had a survey and

         10  someone else had a survey, so we now have the exact

         11  study area.

         12                 We also talked to City Planning,

         13  we've been having several conversations with them as

         14  well. So, we have been working, and we have the two

         15  people we want to hire, so we're just, we're waiting

         16  for the grant to either come through or we're

         17  getting another grant, and we really are very set to

         18  go.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Who did you apply

         20  to for the grant? And when is the time frame?

         21                 MR. TIERNEY: Rockefeller. Maybe you

         22  can put some pressure on them.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Say it again?

         24                 MR. TIERNEY: Rockefeller Foundation.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Rockefeller
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          2  Foundation.

          3                 MR. TIERNEY: Excuse me, just to be

          4  correct. Rockefeller Brothers, I believe.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And when is the

          6  timing you expect to hear a response?

          7                 MR. TIERNEY: Any day.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Just some

          9  toll-gaiting (sic) here at the Committee. Council

         10  Member Sanders, the roll is still open for the

         11  Committee. How do you vote?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: I vote aye on

         13  all.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman Miguel

         15  Martinez, how do you vote?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Aye on all.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

         18  much, gentlemen.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Councilman

         20  Koppell.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: What is the

         22  cost of this survey?

         23                 MR. TIERNEY: We actually applied for

         24  approximately $10,000.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And this is
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          2  being held up because of $10,000?

          3                 MR. TIERNEY: No, no. It's not because

          4  of that. It's because we want dedicated people to do

          5  this work in a very precise time. The preservation

          6  department at this moment, because of the other

          7  activities they're engaged in, doesn't have

          8  dedicated people that could go out for a couple of

          9  months. It's maybe more than ten.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Madam Chair,

         11  I would recommend that the budget has got to be

         12  flexible enough to find $10,000, even if the

         13  Rockefeller Brothers are unwilling.

         14                 MR. TIERNEY: If it doesn't, it will.

         15  If it's not currently --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Because I

         17  would like to support my colleague here and make a

         18  strong recommendation in that regard.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Gee, I'll have

         20  Olly write you a check if that's the problem.

         21  Ten-thousand dollars.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I just, and I don't

         23  mean to beat a dead horse here, but it concerns me,

         24  and Finance and I just talked about this, that the

         25  FMS on the computer for your agency shows 38
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          2  full-time employees and 12 -- out of 50. And what

          3  concerns me is not necessarily your agency.

          4                 MR. TIERNEY: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: What concerns me

          6  is, if we're having a mistake on your agency, how

          7  many other agencies are we also having that mistake?

          8  And it's not our mistake. We're looking at the

          9  computer, and the information that is disseminated

         10  by the City of New York.

         11                 So, you know, in regards to what

         12  Councilman Koppell and Councilman Vann are talking

         13  about also --

         14                 MR. TIERNEY: Sure.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I mean, if you

         16  truly have money for 12 employees that are not

         17  necessary or not being used, then maybe we can help

         18  wit h this -- help me, guys, you know?

         19                 MR. TIERNEY: They're necessary, and

         20  they are being used.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: What I would like

         22  is after this meeting today, I would like Andrew

         23  truly, I would like to figure out why there's a

         24  discrepancy on FMS.

         25                 If it is maybe full-time employees
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          2  that are not salary, I don't know what it is, but

          3  whatever it is we've got to figure it out.

          4                 MR. TIERNEY: We will.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Because I don't

          6  want to have the same mistake as the other agencies

          7  that are much larger, and this Council needs to know

          8  if that information is inaccurate. You only have 50

          9  employees, there's some agencies that have hundreds,

         10  and if there's a discrepancy of 15 percent of the

         11  employees, that's a big deal.

         12                 So, if you can get together with

         13  their staff and figure out how that happened --

         14                 MR. TIERNEY: We will.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: -- I would

         16  appreciate it.

         17                 Councilman Koppell.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I would

         19  observe that the Police Department has 37,000.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And ten percent

         21  would police a lot more neighborhoods of ours.

         22                 Any other questions?

         23                 We thank you, Commissioner Tierney,

         24  and for everyone that is with you.

         25                 MR. TIERNEY: Thank you all.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: There are three

          3  people testifying, I believe all of them are on

          4  Landmarks. I'd like to call you up together, if that

          5  is okay.

          6                 Melissa Baldock, of the Greenwich

          7  Village Society; David Goldfarb of the Preserve and

          8  Protect, Inc., HDC; Cristabel Gough, Society for the

          9  Architecture of the City.

         10                 I see Commissioner Menchini back

         11  there. Commissioner, we'll be ready for you pretty

         12  shortly. Thank you.

         13                 My understanding is Melissa Baldock

         14  left, so, Simeon, if you're signing up right now,

         15  why don't you take a seat? Thanks.

         16                 I'm not going to put a timer on it, I

         17  would just ask each of you to be relatively brief.

         18  And we thank you for coming here today.

         19                 MR. BANKOFF: Okay. Hello, Council

         20  members. Thank you so much for letting us speak now,

         21  rather than 2:00. It's greatly appreciated.

         22                 I'm Simeon Bankoff, Executive

         23  Director of Historic Districts Council. It's my

         24  pleasure to speak at this Preliminary Budget Hearing

         25  for the Landmarks Preservation Commission.
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          2                 The Sergeant-At-Arms should have been

          3  circulating my brief testimony, which is please give

          4  these people more money.

          5                 Frankly, there are 83 historic

          6  districts. I think it's only fair to ask that you

          7  have a staff equal to the number of historic

          8  districts they actually have. That might sound

          9  crazy, but I'm not going to say -- I'm not going to

         10  presume to actually say where the additional people

         11  should go.

         12                 I would ask, however, that as many of

         13  the Council members know, there is a huge push in

         14  the communities, both from Crown Heights North,

         15  Windsor Terrace, Midwood Park, those are only in

         16  Brooklyn. Those are totally non-controversial, the

         17  community is very, very, very in support of this,

         18  and we just heard it only costs $10,000 to do a

         19  survey. But even should the Landmarks Commission,

         20  and I hope they will, designate these properties,

         21  that's an additional 1,800 properties that might

         22  need to be regulated.

         23                 So, even if the Landmarks Commission

         24  had 15 more people to answer the phones on a regular

         25  basis, it would help them a heck of a lot. That's
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          2  really pretty much my comments.

          3                 I also echo Council Member Koppell

          4  continuing to be concerned about the landmark fees.

          5  I've been in front of this body for three years now,

          6  four years on this issue, and I still maintain its

          7  bad public policy. People should not have to pay for

          8  the privilege of preservation, we need more carrots

          9  and less sticks. That's it. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And that's why we

         11  love to hear your testimony.

         12                 Mr. Goldfarb.

         13                 MR. GOLDFARB: David Goldfarb,

         14  representing a number -- I'm the Chair of Preserve

         15  and Protect, a group that puts Internet web pages

         16  for historic preservation and environmental

         17  protection groups on the Internet. I'm also the

         18  president of the Historic Districts Council and a

         19  member of the Board of the Preservation League of

         20  Staten Island.

         21                 Here also to support an increase in

         22  the budget for the Landmarks Preservation

         23  Commission.

         24                 We like to see increases in the

         25  number of designations. As you know, there's been an
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          2  effort to designate in the outer boroughs, but it's

          3  still a very small number as compared to the number

          4  of areas that are being unthreatened, especially in

          5  Queens and Staten Island.

          6                 We'd like to see a reinstitute of a

          7  survey process, so that they don't have to just go

          8  out and hire somebody with a grant to do it, they

          9  have a survey department back in their agency where

         10  they can be surveying the City and knowing what's

         11  important and what needs to be protected. And

         12  increase of enforcement. Because I think after

         13  something is designated, we have to enforce it.

         14                 There's very few agencies where if

         15  they do their job properly, they actually increase

         16  the amount of work they have to do, and this is one

         17  of them.

         18                 When they do their job properly and

         19  they designate areas in historic districts, they add

         20  communities, then they have to enforce their

         21  regulations in those areas, and they have increased

         22  the number of areas in districts and we're hoping

         23  they would do it more. They need more money in order

         24  to enforce the process.

         25                 The C of A process, the number of
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          2  inspectors. As you go there, their C of A's and

          3  their hearings, it's very Manhattan centered because

          4  it seems like there's no work being done in the

          5  other boroughs. The truth is probably there's a lot

          6  of work being done but without the permits, because

          7  nobody is enforcing it. You don't have the kind of

          8  enforcement outside of Manhattan.

          9                 You passed 403-B this year, which is

         10  Councilman Avella's bill, which is very important,

         11  and it adds the civil violations for the neglect of

         12  the building. Again, there's going to be needed

         13  enforcement of that.

         14                 Also, we're hoping that you will pass

         15  Intro. 317 which would cause a review of buildings

         16  that are about to be demolished, and that will be an

         17  increase for the Commission.

         18                 We are asking for, one of the things

         19  we propose is there is a kind of fee that we do

         20  like, and that would be an added fee for the review

         21  of buildings that are about to be demolished.

         22                 If they added $50 to each demolition

         23  permit of a building 50 years and older, that would

         24  raise $100,000 by their own estimate. A hundred

         25  thousand dollars could certainly staff two staff
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          2  members to help bring this bill into fruition and

          3  pay for it.

          4                 We would like to not only add to the

          5  LPC's budget, but also for the revenue side,

          6  something to help pay for it.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And I thank you for

          9  calling them the other boroughs.

         10                 Yes, Ma'am.

         11                 MS. GOUGH: I'm Cristabel Gough, from

         12  the Society for the Architecture of the City. We're

         13  a small oval and tier group that monitors the

         14  Landmarks Commission.

         15                 The Landmarks Commission has a very

         16  small piece of the budget, and increasing or

         17  decreasing this fragment, will not have a decisive

         18  effect on City finances.

         19                 However, an increased appropriation

         20  would make a huge difference in the ability of the

         21  LPC to carry out the public policy that was adopted

         22  when the City Council enacted the Landmarks Law.

         23                 Recently the Committee on Landmarks,

         24  Public Siting and Maritime Uses held two oversight

         25  hearings on the operations of the Landmarks
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          2  Commission, which were attended by an overflow

          3  crowd, mostly of citizens who had a problem with the

          4  performance of the Commission, especially in

          5  relation to their record on Landmark Designation.

          6                 At that time, our group signed on to

          7  the Women's City Club Report critical of the

          8  Commission.

          9                 As we also monitor proceedings of the

         10  Commission, we would like to bring you the good news

         11  that where policy changes did not cost anything,

         12  there has been improvements of the Commission this

         13  year, in terms of better communications with the

         14  public, better procedures in the hearing room, and

         15  better regulatory decisions in some cases.

         16                 What the Commission has been unable

         17  to improve is their response to public demand for

         18  landmarked designations, as you have just been

         19  hearing.

         20                 There have been failures to designate

         21  endangered potential landmarks, and an inability to

         22  produce sufficient research in time. The bull-dozers

         23  have actually been beating the LPC to the draw in

         24  Manhattan and in Queens, as you have probably read

         25  in recent news reports.
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          2                 At the public hearing yesterday,

          3  representatives of five civic groups complained

          4  about landmark designation process.

          5                 We believe these failures are

          6  directly related to insufficient staffing.

          7                 The LPC cannot continue to do more

          8  with less.

          9                 The public is demanding more

         10  protection for New York's landmarks. We urge the

         11  City Council to require an adequate allocation of

         12  resources for historic preservation.

         13                 In view of the problems with these

         14  figures which we had, I am deleting the last

         15  sentence of our testimony. I hope this will be

         16  clarified. What we need is more people in the

         17  category of landmarks preservationists who write the

         18  research and review the applications. And there's no

         19  question in anybody's mind who watches what happens

         20  that more are needed.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 MR. BANKOFF: And if I just may make

         23  one final comment, which is --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You were doing so

         25  well, Simeon.
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          2                 MR. BANKOFF: I know. Very brief. Very

          3  brief.

          4                 I mean, the LPC deals with enormous,

          5  enormous projects. As anyone who has read the

          6  newspapers, the plaza hotel was bought by a

          7  gentleman who spent $675 million for that property,

          8  and he is beholden to this agency, which is very,

          9  very tiny. So, they really just need more resources

         10  to be equitable.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: It's an unusual

         12  argument, we have people testifying give them more

         13  money, and that's a good thing. People that are

         14  actually in the industry know that the agency does a

         15  good job.

         16                 So, we thank you. We hear you.

         17                 Any?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I would

         19  simply observe this is the shortest written

         20  statement I've received, and probably gone through

         21  100 hearings.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: He gets extra

         23  points for that.

         24                 Thank you very much.

         25                 We're going to close the Landmarks'
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          2  portion. We're going to open up the DOITT portion,

          3  and ask Commissioner Menchini to please come in.

          4                 (Recess taken.)

          5                 (Resumed at 1:10 p.m.)

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Next we have

          7  Commissioner Burden, the Chair of the City Planning

          8  Commission. And joined by the Executive Director of

          9  City Planning, Richard Barth. And we thank both of

         10  you for coming.

         11                 I think just as a very brief opening

         12  statement about City Planning, I truly -- I'm just

         13  going to wait a moment while everybody settles in.

         14                 I truly have never had such a good

         15  working relationship as I have with City Planning. I

         16  think that, you know, there may be times you agree

         17  or disagree but the doors, the windows and doors and

         18  everything that you need in order to actually get

         19  good things done in this City is always open, and I

         20  want to thank the Chair for that.

         21                 As everyone knows on this Committee,

         22  any ULURP applications, site selections, almost

         23  everything we do truly needs to start at the City

         24  Planning Commission. So, to have a partner in that

         25  is always a very helpful aspect of City government,
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          2  and I think it's truly what City government should

          3  be, to have a partnership, to make sure that the

          4  right things are done for our constituents in the

          5  City of New York.

          6                 Having said that as well, the speed

          7  with which your agency works, I don't know what you

          8  do, but it's truly amazing, and we find that we make

          9  comments or suggestions and two years later we've

         10  done, I don't know how many rezonings, but an

         11  amazing amount of rezonings relative to the past.

         12                 So, I want to thank you for your work

         13  that you've done, and we look forward to your

         14  testimony.

         15                 MS. BURDEN: Thank you, Chair Katz.

         16  And before I read my statement, I just want to tell

         17  you and Council Member Avella, as well, that we

         18  would have never, ever gotten done what we have

         19  gotten done together without the spirit of

         20  partnership. I think we can collectively compliment

         21  ourselves, because if you work together, it's just

         22  remarkable. I think if we examine the past, which we

         23  try not to do, we would --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Never compare.

         25                 MS. BURDEN: Exactly.
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          2                 We would just see that we've done

          3  historic amount of work to really shape our City in

          4  the best ways.

          5                 Now I will read my statement.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

          7                 MS. BURDEN: Good afternoon, Chair

          8  Katz and distinguished members of the Land Use

          9  Committee. It is a pleasure to discuss with you the

         10  Mayor's Fiscal Year 2006 preliminary budget and

         11  four-year financial plan as it relates to the

         12  Department of City Planning.

         13                 It is a continuing privilege to work

         14  with each of you and to serve the City of New York

         15  as Director of the Department of City Planning and

         16  Chair of New York City Planning Commission.

         17                 I'd like to congratulate Council

         18  Members Larry Seabrook, and Erik Dilan, as the

         19  newest members of the prestigious Land Use

         20  Committee. Good afternoon.

         21                 I am thrilled to say that New York is

         22  experiencing an unprecedented period of population

         23  growth and diversity.

         24                 As you may know, the Department

         25  released the newest New Yorkers 2000 and have given
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          2  you a briefing booklet, and the full book is

          3  available to many of you who do not already have it,

          4  but it's a remarkable document.

          5                 We released that report this past

          6  January. The influential report demonstrates how

          7  continuing growth in immigration is fueling a new

          8  record of total City population of more than 8.1

          9  million.

         10                 The City's foreign-born population

         11  rose from 18 percent of the total population in

         12  1970, to 36 percent in 2000. So, it is the challenge

         13  for the Department to plan for this considerable

         14  growth in a City that is largely built out to its

         15  etches. We must find areas to accommodate and

         16  channel this growth, while at the same time

         17  preserving the character of our unique and diverse

         18  neighborhoods.

         19                 Therefore, I'd like to spend a few

         20  moments on City Planning's ambitious work plan.

         21  First I'd like to thank the members of the Land Use

         22  Committee for their support of two of the

         23  Department's recent initiatives, Kew Gardens,

         24  Richmond Hill in Queens, and Port Morris in the

         25  Bronx.
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          2                 We were very pleased to work with

          3  Chair Katz and Council Member Arroyo and Reed

          4  respectively on these two initiatives, and we're

          5  gratified by their approval by the full Council last

          6  week.

          7                 And on April 4th, it's going to be

          8  quite a day, the zoning Committee will hold public

          9  hearings on the Bayridge Special District, a

         10  proposal to rezone 68 blocks of Springfield Gardens

         11  in Queens, and our 350 block proposal to rezone

         12  Bayside.

         13                 These three initiatives respond to

         14  concerns regarding inappropriate development, and

         15  were carried on in close partnership with local

         16  community boards and civic organizations.

         17                 I was very pleased to work closely

         18  with the Land Use Committee member Vincent Gentile

         19  on the 249-block Bayridge application and have the

         20  support of Council Members Comrie, Sanders,

         21  Jennings, in Springfield Gardens. The rezoning for

         22  Bayside will reinforce existing neighborhood

         23  character and limit most new construction to single

         24  family or two-family detached homes, the area's

         25  predominant housing type.
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          2                 The proposal also creates a new

          3  low-density residential district, R2A, which will

          4  require that new single-family homes be more

          5  consistent with the existing built character.

          6                 I was very proud to work closely with

          7  Council Member Avella on this complex planning

          8  initiative and thank him for his strong leadership

          9  all through the public process.

         10                 Also, on April 4th the City Council

         11  will consider one of the Department of City

         12  Planning's most important and comprehensive

         13  undertakings, the master plan and rezoning for

         14  Greenpoint and Williamsburg.

         15                 This carefully wrought plan promotes

         16  new housing opportunities for any range of incomes,

         17  reclaims an abandoned and derelict waterfront and

         18  leverages two miles of continuous waterfront access

         19  and 49 acres of new parkland.

         20                 The plan not only respects the scale

         21  and mixed use character of these unique

         22  neighborhoods, also protects essential manufacturing

         23  and industrial uses, which will benefit and be

         24  strengthened by the Administration's recently

         25  released industrial policy.
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          2                 I've been working with Council

          3  Members Yassky and Reyna to refine the plan to

          4  respond to their concerns, and expect that we can

          5  reach consensus over the coming weeks.

          6                 And finally, also on the horizon this

          7  spring, is the Department's West Chelsea rezoning

          8  plan.

          9                 This new special district is one of

         10  the Department's most innovative proposals and I am

         11  pleased to have worked closely with Speaker Miller

         12  and Council Member Quinn to help realize the

         13  preservation and transformation of New York's most

         14  unique new open space, the Highline.

         15                 This proposed special district will

         16  foster several critical goals for the West Chelsea

         17  and Highline neighborhoods, including the creation

         18  of housing for all income levels, the reuse of the

         19  Highline as an elevated park, and the preservation

         20  of West Chelsea's premiere art gallery district.

         21                 This is truly an extraordinary

         22  opportunity for the City of New York, and I look

         23  forward to working with the Council to make this a

         24  reality.

         25                 In the months following these
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          2  initiatives, the Council will consider other

          3  departmental rezoning initiatives, including a

          4  hundred blocks of East Flushing to better direct

          5  this vital community and preserve the character of

          6  its side streets, 40 blocks of Kissena Park in North

          7  Central Queens, to encourage appropriate

          8  development, 120 blocks of Bensonhurst to reinforce

          9  the neighborhood's character, and, finally, nearly

         10  90 blocks of Pelham Gardens to preserve this

         11  neighborhood's low-density primary detached and

         12  semi-detached homes.

         13                 And last week we were pleased to

         14  reconvene the Staten Island growth management task

         15  force to continue its good work.

         16                 After the adoption of island-wide

         17  measures to reform residential districts, and the

         18  approval of the Special Natural Area District

         19  regulations, Staten Island is well on its way to a

         20  managed growth policy that protects its natural

         21  assets in cherished neighborhoods.

         22                 The task force has authorized the

         23  Department to remove commercial overlays where

         24  inappropriate, develop proposals for all other

         25  commercial zoning districts on the Island, and
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          2  proceed quickly with the West Shore Land Use and

          3  Transportation study. The partnership of Council

          4  Members McMahon, Oddo and Lanza has been essential,

          5  and I commend them for their commitment to these

          6  issues.

          7                 And there's more. In the next few

          8  months we hope to build consensus on planning

          9  initiatives for Bedford Stuyvesant, Sherman Creek,

         10  the East River Waterfront in Lower Manhattan, and

         11  125th Street river to river study, among several

         12  others.

         13                 Many of these initiatives will create

         14  opportunities for the City to grow, to house and

         15  provide jobs for our growing and richly diverse

         16  population. Other initiatives focus on protecting

         17  neighborhood character, thereby retaining and

         18  enhancing the qualities and special features that

         19  are so important to residents of these varied and

         20  unique communities.

         21                 We look forward to the Council's

         22  support on these efforts.

         23                 And now let me turn to the budget.

         24                 The Department began Fiscal Year 2005

         25  with an expense budget of approximately $18.7
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          2  million, which consisted of 6.7 million in City

          3  funds, and 12 million in federal funds.

          4                 Thus, 35 percent of the budget was

          5  City dollars, and 65 percent in federal dollars.

          6                 When the current budget was adopted

          7  in July 2004, the Department of City Planning's

          8  authorized headcount was 256 staff positions, of

          9  which 83 were tax levy funded, and the remaining 173

         10  positions were funded with federal dollars.

         11                 The Department's adopted budget

         12  included one year Council funding of 335,000 for

         13  lower density studies, and $50,000 to fund a Staten

         14  Island lower density task force position.

         15                 This position was initially funded in

         16  Fiscal '04 and will terminate at the end of Fiscal

         17  '05.

         18                 A total of six tax levy positions

         19  were also added to the budget to enable the

         20  Department to use the Council funding increase for

         21  new planners in the borough offices.

         22                 Since adoption, the Department has

         23  undergone one financial plan change, reflected in

         24  the January plan pursuant to directions from OMB.

         25                 There were a number of adjustments
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          2  made in the January Financial Plan.

          3                 The plan modified the Department's

          4  Fiscal '05 adopted budget to reflect a one-time

          5  increase to its tax levy budget of $40,000 in Fiscal

          6  '05 to fund the printing cost for the new addition

          7  of our zoning handbook.

          8                 The plan made several permanent

          9  adjustments that are reflected in the Department's

         10  tax levy budget in Fiscal '05 and succeeding years.

         11                 These include $79,650 for heat, light

         12  and power, and the restoration of 172,000 from the

         13  financial plan savings of the Fiscal '04 January

         14  Financial Plan.

         15                 The restoration of the Fiscal '04

         16  financial plan savings will allow the Department to

         17  meet its other than personal service needs that

         18  include the replacement of 250 broken chairs, as

         19  well as fund a portion of the Department's personal

         20  service managerial salary adjustments.

         21                 In addition, the Department will

         22  achieve a tax levy savings of 313,000 in Fiscal '05.

         23                 This savings will fulfill a targeted

         24  reduction of 102,000 for the current fiscal year, as

         25  well as a 211,000 reduction initially targeted for
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          2  Fiscal Year '06.

          3                 The January Plan reflects two changes

          4  to the Department's community development base

          5  budget. The Department received an increase of

          6  $77,000 to fund salary adjustments for key

          7  managerial positions that include borough directors,

          8  borough deputy directors, and core senior staff.

          9                 In addition, $650,000 was added to

         10  the base budget to provide sufficient funding over

         11  the long-term for 11 full-time and three part-time

         12  lower density and other staff in Fiscal Year '05 and

         13  succeeding years.

         14                 Two CD positions were also added to

         15  the Department's CD budget to match the budgeted

         16  headcount with the actual number of employees.

         17                 Finally, the plan reflects the $1.1

         18  million rollover of the Fiscal Year federal grant

         19  funding. This funding is specifically earmarked for

         20  the Queens Plaza Bike and Pedestrian Improvement

         21  Project, which is a two-phase project.

         22                 Phase 1 involved the development of a

         23  new roadway plan which was approved by DOT in June

         24  2002.

         25                 The second phase is underway and will
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          2  result in a streetscape and landscape design plan

          3  for the entire Queens Plaza area.

          4                 As a result of these changes, the

          5  January Financial Plan, in the January Financial

          6  Plan the Department's Fiscal Year 2006 Preliminary

          7  Budget calls for a total allocation of $19.3

          8  million, 6.6 million in City tax levy funds, which

          9  is 34 percent of the proposed budget, and $12.7

         10  million in federal funds or 66 percent of the

         11  proposed budget.

         12                 This provides for a total of 251

         13  staff in the Department. Seventy-seven City-funded

         14  positions and the 174 federally-funded positions.

         15                 This includes a reduction from the

         16  adopted budget of six tax levy positions and

         17  $335,000, which reflects the one-year nature of

         18  positions added by the Council funding.

         19                 This also includes a reduction of the

         20  one CD position and $50,000 from Staten Island Lower

         21  Density Task Force Funding.

         22                 On the revenue side, the Department

         23  is projecting 1.4 million to be realized in Fiscal

         24  Year 2005, from income generated by ULURP and CEQR

         25  application fees, as well as revenue from
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          2  publication and subscription sales.

          3                 We are projecting the same level of

          4  revenue in Fiscal Year 2006.

          5                 In sum, while the overall funding for

          6  the Department has not significantly changed, we are

          7  committed to find ways to meet the challenges and

          8  demands of our growing work program. We seek your

          9  support of the proposed Preliminary Budget for

         10  Fiscal Year 2006. It will enable the Department of

         11  City Planning to continue to realize an agenda vital

         12  to the long-term growth and viability of the City,

         13  and we look forward to your active participation in

         14  the planning process.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you for your

         17  very detailed report.

         18                 The 251 staff members is projected,

         19  or is that actual employees?

         20                 MS. BURDEN: That's the actual

         21  employees --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ now.

         23                 MS. BURDEN: -- Right now.

         24                 MR. BARTH: Correct.

         25                 MS. BURDEN: And let me introduce,
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          2  even though you introduced him --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Yes, Richard Barth.

          4                 MS. BURDEN: -- Richard Barth, who is

          5  the Executive Director of the Department of City

          6  Planning.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Welcome.

          8                 MR. BARTH: The number as referenced

          9  by the Chair in the testimony are the budgeted

         10  number of employees.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So what's the

         12  actual now?

         13                 MR. BARTH: The actual is virtually

         14  identical to that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: The Department I

         16  know plans to reduce PS by about $313,000.  I know

         17  you touched upon the money that the Council

         18  allocated last year. For my colleagues that might

         19  not recall, the fought, this Committee fought, and

         20  the Council fought for $330,000 to go to City

         21  Planning. We see that you reduced the Commission and

         22  Executive Management Unit, the Administration Unit,

         23  and the Environmental Review Unit. But we spent the

         24  $330,000 for staff.

         25                 So I guess the numbers are so
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          2  similar, what we'd like to make sure is that when we

          3  give money to the agency that other things, that

          4  it's now paying for the other things in the agency,

          5  that it's used for what we allocated it for.

          6                 So, can you just explain why there's

          7  a cut here, and how we added the employees.

          8                 MS. BURDEN: We're delighted to

          9  respond.

         10                 I will let Richard do that.

         11                 MR. BARTH: First let me say that we

         12  very much welcomed the money that was added to our

         13  budget by the City Council, and we believe we put it

         14  to very prudent use.

         15                 It really doesn't relate to the

         16  313,000 cash reduction, the two are not directly

         17  related. And let me explain why.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You will admit it's

         19  a very similar number?

         20                 MR. BARTH: It's close.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: It's close. So, if

         22  you could just explain how that happened.

         23                 MR. BARTH: First let me explain how

         24  we used the Council member. Again, it was put into

         25  the budget as a one-shot, it was not added to the
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          2  base. Therefore, we had to be prudent in terms of

          3  our hires because there's no assurances that this

          4  funding would be there next year.

          5                 What we did, we made a decision to,

          6  despite the fact that it is a one-shot, to hire both

          7  full-time staff and part-time staff for the borough

          8  offices, and the reason for the part-time staff,

          9  college aids who could help us with the data

         10  collection, with the mapping to go out in the field,

         11  to really get a jump on getting some of these lower

         12  density studies done. What we hired, we hired three

         13  full-time planners, and six part-time planners for

         14  Brooklyn, Bronx, Queens and Staten Island offices.

         15  On an annual --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: How many part-time?

         17  I missed it.

         18                 MR. BARTH: Six part-time, three

         19  full-time. And the full-time positions were posted

         20  as one-year positions, not beyond that. And on an

         21  annual basis, the salary cost for those positions

         22  are $215,000, and we also spent about $20,000 for

         23  software and computers for the new employees.

         24                 So, if those costs were annualized,

         25  it takes time to bring staff on with the postings

                                                            92

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2  and everything else, so during this particular

          3  fiscal year, we spent about approximately $130,000,

          4  and that's where we stand in terms of the Council

          5  money.

          6                 We didn't want to hire all full-time

          7  positions, recognizing that come July 1st, we don't

          8  know whether we can pay for them, to keep them on.

          9  They've certainly been incredibly helpful enabling

         10  us to expand our lower density work.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We're going to ask

         12  that we roll the other money over to the next year.

         13                 You have it available to you. What

         14  should occur is that it should roll over to the next

         15  year, the expense monies there for you.

         16                 MR. BARTH: If I understand it, and

         17  this may be a question for OMB, is that with the tax

         18  levy money, whatever is unspent at the end of the

         19  fiscal year, we lose.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: My counsel is

         21  saying that you can request. I was wondering,

         22  because my member item money doesn't last a year. If

         23  they don't spend it that year, it's gone, and I

         24  think it's a similar thing. But you can request to

         25  the Administration that it be rolled over, so just
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          2  FYI.

          3                 MS. BURDEN: Why don't I find out.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: If you can find out

          5  and request that it be rolled over.

          6                 MS. BURDEN: Obviously we would. And

          7  it is, as you can understand, difficult to advertise

          8  to get somebody just if you say it's for one year.

          9  So, we're trying to do the best we can with it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Right. But it seems

         11  to me if you spent $130,000, which I assume is about

         12  where you're going to be spending by June, so it's

         13  for one year. Sounds like it was so helpful that

         14  maybe next year if you still have another 130, which

         15  you will, you'll be able to continue being able to

         16  use these three full-time employees and six

         17  part-time employees. And while you're at it, you can

         18  also ask the Mayor to baseline it for you. Just as a

         19  side note.

         20                 MR. BARTH: Oh, yeah. Believe me, we

         21  try to do as much as we can.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         23                 Councilman Koppell.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: A couple of

         25  things. First of all, it is a little confusing on
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          2  this subject actually, because on page five you say,

          3  you added 650,000 to provide sufficient funding over

          4  the long-term for 11 full-time, three part-time

          5  lower density and other staff, the lower density

          6  people were some of the people that were paid for by

          7  the --

          8                 MR. BARTH: I can explain that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And then on

         10  the next page you said you've eliminated that. So,

         11  it seems a little inconsistent.

         12                 MR. BARTH: I can explain that. In

         13  Fiscal Year 2004, when we really made a concerted

         14  effort with the City Council to really do an

         15  aggressive lower-density over development program,

         16  the City, OMB provided us with the headcount, with

         17  the people, to staff up and do these lower density

         18  studies. And it references the nine, 11 people, that

         19  were hired for that effort.

         20                 What OMB told us at the time, they

         21  said we're not going to increase your budget, but

         22  use the cash reserves to pay for it. They said they

         23  will make us whole.

         24                 Typically we end a year, when you

         25  have a 16, 18 million budget, you never use up every
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          2  last dollar.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right.

          4                 MR. BARTH: And, so, OMB made the

          5  commitment that they would make sure that we were

          6  made whole with that funding.

          7                 Now we're a year later and OMB

          8  basically said to us keep all those people, and

          9  we're going to not increase the people in your

         10  agency, but provide the funds to ensure that they

         11  are there in the long-term.

         12                 The people that we talked about with

         13  the Council money is something separate.

         14                 MS. BURDEN: Separate.

         15                 MR. BARTH: So the 650 is really for

         16  people that were hired in Fiscal Year 2004.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, Madam

         18  Chair, I would certainly recommend that the Council

         19  give a new allocation to continue those people,

         20  because this whole low-density work has obviously,

         21  from the statement of the Chair, it's relevant all

         22  over the City, it's been doing very well, and let me

         23  just take this occasion to thank the Chair for her

         24  work in the Community Board 8, which major

         25  priorities were all accomplished in the last year,
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          2  and I'm very pleased about that and grateful and we

          3  want to move forward with some other things, but the

          4  most important things actually that were on the

          5  table have actually been done, which I appreciate.

          6                 There is one other area, though, a

          7  new area, at least new in terms of your studies, and

          8  I understand you're doing them, that are relevant in

          9  my district and may well be relevant in other parts

         10  of the district, and that is your study of parking

         11  rules under the zoning law. That is to say, parking

         12  in buildings, parking spaces in buildings. The

         13  current requirements are not very great. That is,

         14  when you build a building, and there is big

         15  variation, as I read it, and I'm not a great expert

         16  on it, but in many buildings, you're only required

         17  to put in one-third as many spaces as apartments, so

         18  you build a 100-unit apartment house in my district

         19  and you're only required to put in 33 parking

         20  spaces. That varies. In some cases I understand it's

         21  even less, in some cases it's more, but it is by no

         22  means one parking space for each apartment unit, and

         23  yet these days often times families have more than

         24  one car and creates a severe parking problem in my

         25  district, and I'm sure in other parts of the City.
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          2  And I'm told that you're doing a study of these

          3  provisions of the zoning law, and I would urge that

          4  that study be done as quickly as possible and

          5  recommendations be developed, if any can be

          6  developed, because we have, as you know, a building

          7  boom in this City, and we're now seeing in

          8  neighborhoods such as mine a great deal of building

          9  and development, and it's creating a parking

         10  problem. I mean, my colleagues here will know how

         11  difficult it is to get people out at night, and we

         12  had an overflow audience of well over 100 people for

         13  a meeting to talk about this issue, parking problems

         14  in Riverdale. So, it's something that's at the top

         15  of the agenda for a lot of people. They're very

         16  upset about it, and I personally support increasing

         17  the number of spaces that developers will be

         18  required to build when they build.

         19                 I know that there are counter

         20  arguments to that, both in terms of cost, in terms

         21  of air quality and so on, but in a district such as

         22  mine, this is a key priority, because not only for

         23  the new people who move into the buildings and then

         24  can't park their car, but the people who have been

         25  living there for many years and used to be able to
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          2  park their car in the street now have no place to

          3  park, and they drive around, literally drive around.

          4  I know people who tell me they drive around for 30,

          5  40 minutes every night, looking for a parking space.

          6                 So, whatever the results of the study

          7  are, I hope that the study will recommend increases

          8  in requirements for parking spaces.

          9                 But if you don't do your study soon,

         10  it will be like, you know, closing the barn door

         11  after the horse has run away, because we have all

         12  this construction going on and in a number of

         13  instances, inadequate number of units are being

         14  provided.

         15                 So, I --

         16                 MS. BURDEN: Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And if you

         18  need more money for that, I commend, Madam Chair,

         19  that we put more money in the budget. Did you hear

         20  that?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I heard more money.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I said if we

         23  need more money to do this parking study, I will

         24  personally recommend firmly that more money be

         25  provided so this study can be done.
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          2                 MR. BURDEN: You're very articulate,

          3  Council member, in speaking of the complexity of

          4  this issue, and you can imagine in higher density

          5  and lower density it is complex. It is underway. I

          6  don't know if we have any projections about how long

          7  it will take but we certainly --

          8                 MR. BARTH: The study had been delayed

          9  because we were waiting for up-to-date data from the

         10  Department of Motor Vehicle Bureau. But I expect

         11  later this calendar year we should have some

         12  preliminary findings.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: The sooner

         14  the better because once you have findings, then

         15  there have to be recommendations and then it has to

         16  go through ULURP.

         17                 And I would urge, also, that it be

         18  looked at in a segmented way, because what might be

         19  appropriate for some neighborhoods is not

         20  necessarily appropriate for others.

         21                 And one other thing, just briefly, if

         22  after you're finished, I have a very local issue,

         23  which I don't want to take your time, if you could

         24  stay, if I could see you afterward for about 30

         25  seconds. Thank you.

                                                            100

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I would attest to

          3  Council Member Koppell's problem in Riverdale. And I

          4  was just talking to Council Member Brewer, that the

          5  problem is that they don't leave at night. So, if

          6  you're looking for a spot at 8:00 at night, it's not

          7  a shopping district. So, unlike on Austin Street in

          8  my district, which is terrible parking, but at least

          9  people are leaving, it may be difficult but people

         10  are going on a regular basis.

         11                 So, Councilman Comrie.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you,

         13  Madam Chair.

         14                 Good afternoon, Chair Young (sic),

         15  and I want to start by thanking you for -- I mean,

         16  Chairman Burden, I want to start by thanking you for

         17  everything your office has done, as far as some

         18  rezoning areas in Queens. You know, we're all

         19  working on the Cambria Heights, Queens Village, the

         20  Springfield Garden, which you mentioned in the

         21  testimony,'cause, you know, success breeds want and

         22  desire, you know, and clearly in my area of Queens,

         23  where a lot of homes, actually they never built to

         24  the density before with the allowable zoning, now

         25  because of the housing shortage, people are now
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          2  building to allowable density, which is changing the

          3  fabric of the original community's layout. There has

          4  been a real clamor to do additional rezonings in

          5  Hollis, St. Albans and the other part of Queens

          6  Village that hasn't been done. So, number one, I

          7  want to thank you for your success, but I need to

          8  implore you to actually try to baseline that money

          9  so we can keep those employees, and actually work to

         10  get some more people, because the requests are

         11  coming in fast and furious to do the protective

         12  zoning.  From your office, I want to thank John

         13  Young and Debbie Carney, who have been working

         14  fiercely with everyone in all of the communities in

         15  Queens. I know that they just had a lot of meetings

         16  regarding Bayside, there are other meetings

         17  regarding many different parts of Queens, so where

         18  actually you need more staff, and more staff

         19  baselined quickly to deal with this, because the

         20  time frame, as you know, allows for what was done in

         21  the most productive manner, it takes almost a year

         22  to get done.

         23                 I hate to be parochial, but there are

         24  so many neighborhoods that I need to protect in as

         25  fast a period as possible.
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          2                 In that regard, I hope that we can

          3  try to baseline that money. I would submit that we

          4  try to increase the amount from the Council, but if

          5  you can do that.

          6                 You talked about some rezoning, and I

          7  just wanted to find out, you didn't mention, though

          8  that the downtown Jamaica rezoning.

          9                 MS. BURDEN: We didn't mention all of

         10  them, downtown Jamaica is, it's our largest

         11  rezoning, even larger than the Hudson, you know, 415

         12  blocks, and we are going to be having  scoping

         13  session, and I just was speaking to Richard about it

         14  the other day, on the EIS, which is the big step.

         15                 Do we have a date on that yet?

         16                 MR. BARTH: It's not definite, but we

         17  are really shooting for late May or June to have the

         18  public scoping session.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         20                 MR. BARTH: On the EIS.

         21                 MS. BURDEN: That would be an

         22  important --

         23                 MR. BARTH: We'll let you know of the

         24  changes. It's a very complicated environmental

         25  review.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right. I

          3  understand. And they have been informing me, keeping

          4  me updated on it. We just need to get that done as

          5  soon as possible, so I want to encourage you to keep

          6  your focus on it.

          7                 MS. BURDEN: Okay.

          8                 It's very important for the City.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I know that

         10  there are other issues coming up, but that area

         11  really needs to get that rezoning done so that they

         12  can finish their long-term plan for the air train

         13  area and downtown area to build better stores.

         14                 MS. BURDEN: Absolutely.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: An issue came

         16  up earlier this morning, actually, that I wanted to

         17  talk to you about, and that was regarding issues

         18  around billboards and the zoning issues around that.

         19  That's becoming a real problem, as far as the

         20  reality of perception with what was acceptable in

         21  the past and what may be acceptable now. And we are

         22  hoping, I'm hoping we can also try to get you to put

         23  some more money in more personnel to try and look at

         24  that because Buildings Department will still, in

         25  trying to write regulations still come back to the

                                                            104

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2  zoning, planning and zoning, to try and figure out

          3  how we can get this done properly, and how we can

          4  maximize the ability of a City that needs to

          5  advertise its assets to all travelers that come

          6  through, vis-a-vis the access that we have now.

          7                 And I can tell you that in traveling

          8  in other cities, we seem to have the lowest density

          9  of advertising in any major City that I've been to,

         10  as far as billboards are concerned, and maybe that's

         11  something that we could look at vis-a-vis the

         12  federal mandates.

         13                 MS. BURDEN: It might be a good idea

         14  to do a best practices study, and we were just

         15  chatting about it before we came in.

         16                 Did you want to make any --

         17                 MR. BARTH: Our counsel had testified

         18  when you had the hearings on the billboard, and

         19  there had been that discussion, and certainly if

         20  there were funding available, to pursue a study of

         21  best practices, what other cities are doing, that's

         22  certainly something we'd be willing to undertake

         23  through a consultant.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. Well, I

         25  appreciate that. I know that Chair and I have been
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          2  trying to talk about putting some money into that,

          3  and, you know, sounds like we want to give you money

          4  from this, so it's -- because we need, clearly City

          5  Planning, and as you mentioned in this book, with

          6  the population changing and the fact that everybody

          7  wants to be and live in New York City, we still need

          8  to have neighborhoods that reflect the beauty and

          9  history of this City, give maximum ability for

         10  people to live here.

         11                 Just one last question. On the

         12  Williamsburg rezoning, is it possible to get to the

         13  40 percent affordable component that the members are

         14  concerned about?

         15                 MS. BURDEN: Well, let me tell you,

         16  and we'd be delighted to present in detail the plan

         17  before you have hearings. But the number of 40

         18  percent actually stemmed from a project that was

         19  built just south of the Brooklyn Bridge called

         20  Shaeffer Landing, and that site does have 40 percent

         21  affordable housing, but there's a crucial aspect of

         22  that site, which was a City-owned site. So the City

         23  gave it for a dollar to the developer and the City

         24  also did the environmental work.

         25                 However, in Greenpoint and
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          2  Williamsburg, we're at a significant amount of

          3  affordable housing, 23 percent at the moment. But on

          4  publicly-owned sites, which form a very important

          5  component of the affordable housing plan,

          6  Commissioner Sean Donovan, who has been a tremendous

          7  partner to us, has promised 80, 80 percent

          8  affordable housing on the publicly-owned sites. And

          9  we're working very closely, not only with the

         10  elected Council members, but also with the community

         11  to try to achieve their goals. But I look forward to

         12  presenting the proposal to you in detail.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you,

         14  Madam Chair.

         15                 And I want to, again, thank you and

         16  your office and especially your Queens' staff for

         17  always being, for always doing a lot of outreach in

         18  keeping us informed.

         19                 And whatever I can do to continue to

         20  be helpful, especially to get those plans done,

         21  clearly downzoning in Queens is now, you know, every

         22  meeting that I go to in Queens, they're talking

         23  about the Staten Island Task Force. I don't know

         24  that we want to do, fund the task force, but if we

         25  could fund more personnel to catch up to that, would

                                                            107

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2  be important to every resident in Queens.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 MS. BURDEN: Thank you for your

          5  compliments, too. I will convey it to the Queens'

          6  office.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

          8                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

         10  Vann.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Yes, thank you,

         12  Madam Chair.

         13                 Good afternoon, Commissioner.

         14                 Yes, I read through your testimony

         15  rather quickly. Just a little disappointed at the

         16  also Ran status (phonetic) for Bedford Stuyvesant,

         17  in that we had done a lot of work, unified the

         18  entire community around what was to have been our

         19  197-A plan, and we worked very closely with you in

         20  your Brooklyn office, and I know they were

         21  undertaking a study and a lot of it was based in

         22  concert, really, with the work that we had done,

         23  197-A. So, I guess maybe my expectations of it would

         24  have been further along, as opposed to where they

         25  are now.
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          2                 MS. BURDEN: If I conveyed it as also

          3  Ran (phonetic), it's one of the most important

          4  initiatives of the Administration, Bedford

          5  Stuyvesant.

          6                 We don't have a precise zoning

          7  proposal at the moment where we should have it

          8  within, I would say, by June, I think is when we

          9  have a zoning proposal.

         10                 So, it will be coming back to you

         11  with that proposal by or before June.

         12                 Do we have exact dates on that?

         13                 MR. BARTH: We don't have the exact

         14  dates, but we're also, as you know, in partnership

         15  again with HPD on this to make sure that we can get

         16  the best bang for the buck, so-to-speak.

         17                 MS. BURDEN: And also with Small

         18  Business Services as well, because that's a very

         19  important component of our whole Citywide proposal

         20  for Bed Stuy.

         21                 But I will contact the staff this

         22  afternoon and get back to you within the day about

         23  what our time frame is, because it is a very, very

         24  high priority, I assure you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Thank you. I
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          2  feel better already.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I have just very

          4  quickly two questions. Do you have a release date on

          5  the new zoning handbook, which I am waiting for with

          6  bated breath?

          7                 MS. BURDEN: Very complicated. The

          8  same staff that does all the lower density drawings

          9  is doing the handbook as well. Richard and I have

         10  been pushing and pushing to get it done.

         11                 We don't have a date yet.

         12                 MR. BARTH: We don't have a date. It

         13  will not be done in this fiscal year. The testimony

         14  talked about there was funding put in for that, but

         15  it will not be done in the next four months.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: The three full-time

         17  employees, and the six part-time employees that

         18  equal the $130,000, where are those employees? You

         19  said the other boroughs, but I wasn't sure where.

         20                 MR. BARTH: I will tell you precisely

         21  where they are.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Yes.

         23                 I want to thank Councilman Vann,

         24  Council Member Comrie, Council Member Koppell, for

         25  hanging in til the end, and, of course, my co-chair,
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          2  Gale Brewer.

          3                 MR. BARTH: At the moment in terms of

          4  current headcount, there's one full-time in

          5  Brooklyn, two part-time; in the Bronx, there's two

          6  part-time; in Queens there's one full-time and

          7  one-part-time, and in Staten Island there's one

          8  full-time and one part-time.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay. All right,

         10  thank you. And that's $130,000. So, theoretically,

         11  in order to continue the work that you're doing now,

         12  you really only need the 130 in order to continue

         13  next year the same employees as this year?

         14                 MR. BARTH: The 130 is what we spent

         15  in this fiscal year.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Right.

         17                 MR. BARTH: On an annual basis, it's

         18  215,000.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: 215. So the 130

         20  represents the fact that you hired them late in the

         21  fiscal year because you have to do the notice and

         22  all that. So, it's 215,000 to continue the same

         23  employees.

         24                 MS. BURDEN: Yes.

         25                 MR. BARTH: Correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.

          3                 Any other questions?

          4                 Thank you very much, Madam Chair,

          5  Richard, for joining us.

          6                 MS. BURDEN: Thank you, Madam Chair.

          7                 MR. BARTH: Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Public portion. Is

          9  there anyone here from the public to testify?

         10                 All right, meeting is adjourned.

         11  Thank you.

         12                 We want to thank the Land Use staff,

         13  and obviously the Finance staff, for all the work

         14  they do in these meetings. Thanks.

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 2:20 p.m.)
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